Canton City Council
December 10, 2025 — 6p.m.
Regular Meeting Agenda

1. Call to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of agenda

4. Consent agenda

a)
b)

Approval of November 12, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
Approval of December Disbursements

5. Public comments

6. Reports

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

9)
h)

Mayor

Clerk & Deputy Clerk

Public Works

Fire Department

Police

Planning Commission

Personnel Committee: Employee Performance Reviews
Other

7. Old business

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-17: 2026 Final General Fund Budget
Consider approval of Resolution 2025-18: Final Certified Tax Levy

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-19: 2026 Sewer Fund Budget

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-20: 2026 Water Fund Budget

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-21: 2026 Fire Department Budget

Consider approval of Ordinance 2026-01: 2026 Fee Schedule

Consider approval of summary publication of Ordinance 2026-01: 2026 Fee Schedule

8. New business

a)
b)

c)
d)
e)

f)

9. Adjourn

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-22: 2026 Election polling place designation

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-23: Fire Department gambling exempt permit
application

Consider reinvestment of Sewer Fund CD ($30,498.32 maturity 12/19/2025)

Consider reinvestment of Liquor Store CD ($38,215.20 maturity 12/21/2025)

Consider reinvestment of Vail Estate CD ($142,870.56 maturity 12/23/2025)

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-24: Calling a Public Hearing on the proposal to adopt
a street reconstruction plan and the intent to issue a general obligation note

Upcoming Dates:

City Office Closed: Christmas Day December 25
City Office Closed: New Years Day January 1
Regular City Council Meeting January 14 @ 6 pm



Canton City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
November 12, 2025

Members present: Kristy Ziegler, George Hafner, Jason Magnuson, Jen Dowling
Members absent: Jeremy Hanson

City staff present: Anne Koliha, Barb Kerns, Jon Nordsving, lim Davis

Visitor(s) present: Sabine Hafner, Kevin Graves (WHKS), Victor Holland (WHKS)

Mayor Ziegler called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
Motion by Dowling, seconded by Magnuson to approve the agenda, motion carried.

Consent Agenda

a) Approval of October 8, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes

b) Approval of November Disbursements

c) Approval of $3,000 donation from Canton Fire Relief Association

d) Approval of $3,000 contribution to PERA on behalf of Canton Fire Department
Motion by Hafner, seconded by Dowling to approve the consent agenda, motion carried.

Public comments: none

Reports:

Mayor: Mayor Ziegler reported: Brrr...The weather has reminded us that snow is on its way. Please pay
attention to future announcements regarding alternate street parking. The plows need this additional
space to efficiently clear the streets.

Last month, we had an information meeting on the street and utilities project that will start in 2026. This
project will address our aging well, water tower, water main, sanitary sewer, and make updates to our
wastewater treatment facility. New streets will be reconstructed after the utility construction is
complete. Main street construction, a county project, is planned to occur in 2027.

*City streets will be 24 feet wide asphalt and put back in the same approximate location

*Curb and gutter or sidewalk is not part of the street project

*Main Street will have the sidewalk, curb and gutter and storm sewer replaced

*Main Street, south of Hudson St will not have he sidewalk replaced

The city is in the process of applying for funding to have the lead water service lines replaced on owner’s
private property with hopes to coordinate this work with the larger utility project but not guaranteed to
happen that way.

Proposed project timeline is:

West Side of Main Street: Construction in 2026 with 1% layer of asphalt and 2027 with 2" layer of
asphalt applied

East Side of Main Street: Construction in 2027 with 1% layer of asphalt and 2028 with 2" layer of asphalt
applied

Construction may affect: Access to driveway; Home mail delivery; Garbage pick-up changes in location;
Temporary water service; Trees and landscaping; Buried dog fences; Buried irrigation pipes

An interruption will occur during the transition to the temporary service lines. Temporary service lines
will bypass the meter so utility bills will be calculated using the average usage of previous months.

Only trees affected by the construction will be removed with no additional cost to the landowner.



Owners interested in widening driveways or installing paving for off-street parking, can do so at their
own expense. A separate contractor will be needed to have work done on private property.

Sewer lines from property line to the home can be replaced during this project at the owner’s expense.
The total estimated project costs = $16,383,000. The City has received (2) Rural Development grants =
$10,983,000. The City received a Rural Development low interest loan = $3,741,000 (40 years). The City
will fund $1,659,000. Utility rates will need to be adjusted to pay the utility portion of the project. The
tax levy will be used to pay the streets portion of the project which will hopefully avoid having any
special assessments to property owners for the project. Fillmore County will pay for their portion of
County Road 21 reconstruction.

Please contact the office for concerns regarding access issues for those disabled and in need of special
accommodations. Also the City will be in contact with specific property owners regarding easements for
utilities for the project.

Deputy Clerk: none

Clerk: Clerk Koliha reported: *Street & Utility Improvement project: begin work on easements that will
be needed as part of the project; *Lead Service Line Inventory: finished up inventory with WHKS and
final report submitted to MDH — notification letters to be sent out to affected property owners with lead
and galvanized lines; WWTF: work with MPCA and WHKS on the reissuance of the permit for the sewer
plant and working on the different limits that need to be met for future regulations; Reminder of joint
meeting with Mabel-Canton School Board and Mabel City Council has been scheduled for Wednesday
December 3 at 6pm at Mabel-Canton High School Science Room #50

Public Works: Nordsving reported:

*Consider quote for heater for wellhouse

Motion by Magnuson, seconded by Dowling to approve purchase of heater for the wellhouse from
Kingsley Mercantile; motion carried.

Fire Department: Davis informed council that the 1986 Ford fire truck has been sold and is gone
Police: Written Quarterly report (July, August, September)

Planning Commission: none

Other: none

WHKS Report
a) Consider approval of authorization to submit Water Tower Repainting documents to USDA

Rural Development for review
Motion by Hafner, seconded by Dowling to approve authorization to WHKS to submit Water
Tower Repainting documents to USDA Rural Development for review; motion carried.

Old Business

a) 2026 Preliminary Budget Review
Clerk Koliha reviewed the preliminary budgets with the council with discussion regarding level of
final tax levy

b) Consider approval of 3% COLA
Motion by Magnuson, seconded by Dowling to approve a 3% COLA for city staff for 2026,
motion carried.

c) Consider approval of Resolution 2025-14: Increase Sewer Rates
Motion by Magnuson, seconded by Dowling to approve Resolution 2025-14: Increase Sewer
Rates, motion carried.



New Business

a) Consider approval of Resolution 2025-15: Certify Unpaid Charges
Motion by Dowling, seconded by Hafner to approve Resolution 2025-15: Certify Unpaid Charges,
motion carried.

b) Review of Schedule of Fees and Charges for 2026
Clerk Koliha reviewed current schedule of fees and suggested increases and changes to fees for
2026.

c) Consider approval of Resolution 2025-16: Canton Community Association gambling exempt
permit application
Motion by Magnuson, seconded by Dowling to approve Resolution 2025-16: Canton Community
Association gambling exempt permit application; motion carried.

d) Consider approval to purchase replacement audio equipment for the Town Hall
Motion by Magnuson, seconded by Dowling to approve the purchase of the replacement audio
equipment for the Town Hall; motion carried.

Motion by Magnuson, seconded by Dowling to adjourn the meeting at 6:36 p.m.; motion carried.



December 2025 Disbursements

General Fund

Acentek S 223.59
Canon Financial* S 67.00
MiEnergy S 82.02
MiEnergy S 94.34
MiEnergy S 37.45
MiEnergy S 531.51
MiEnergy S 62.21
MiEnergy $ 35.76
MN Energy Resources* S 83.52
MN Energy Resources* ) 60.60
MN Energy Resources* S 167.46
Nordsving, Jon S 50.00
Tri-State Business Machines S 58.86
Bruening Rock Products $ 490.00
Wright Way Computers $ 218.75
SMG Web Design
Village Farm & Home S 18.97
Total General Fund Disbursements S 2,282.04
Acentek S 40.79
Gopher State One Call S 6.75
MiEnergy $ 685.02
MN Dept of Health S 420.00
Kingsley Mercantile S 1,721.72
Total Water Disbursements $ 2,874.28
Sewer Fund
Acentek S 40.79
MiEnergy S 874.12
Utility Consultants S 260.13
First Southeast Bank S 18,886.00
Bergey Farms S 300.00
Village Farm & Home S 34.98
Total Sewer Disbursements S 20,396.02
GarbageFund
Richard's Sanitation S 2,563.88
Total Garbage Disbursements $ 2,563.88
[Fire Department. 10|
Acentek S 64.95
MiEnergy S 80.94
MiEnergy S 37.08
MN Energy Resources* S 58.61
Fire Safety USA S 1,588.99
Village Farm & Home S 19.99
Motorola Solutions S 6,350.40
Total Fire Department Disbursements S 8,200.96
98,050.00
Total Streets Project Disbursments $ 98,050.00
Total Monthly Disbursements S 134,367.18

Phone & Internet Services (City Hall/Town Hall)
Copier monthly lease contract
Electric: City Hall

Electric: Town Hall

Electric: Bus Shed

Electric: Street Lights

Electric: Welcome Sign

Electric: Ball Field

Gas: City Hall

Gas: Maintenance Shop

Gas: Town Hall

Cell phone stipend

Copier monthly contract

Road Rock

computer support

Annual Web design & Hosting Services
supplies

Phone dialer system

Locates

Electric: Pump House

Quarterly Service Connection Fee
heater in wellhouse

Phone: WWTF

Electric: WWTF

Samples

Sewer Note ($12,000 principal + $6,886 interest)
Tractor Rental for land application

supplies (heater and shovel handle)

Monthly service charge

Interenet services

Electric: Fire Hall

Electric: Cooler

Gas: Fire Hall

repairs to Freightliner Rescue
supplies (power service 911 additive)
2 Portable Radios

Engineering (October 2025)

*EFT Payments



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-17
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
2026 FINAL GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET
WHEREAS, the City of Canton is required to maintain a budget for its fiscal operations, and;

WHERAS, the City of Canton has the legal authority to use its taxation authorities to levy
necessary funds to operate the City, and;

WHEREAS, the City of Canton is continually monitoring its budget and develops a fiscal budget
based on the calendar year, and;

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed financial documentation and provided a budget
recommendation to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota:
The 2026 Final General Fund Budget be certified in the amount of $ 325,017.00

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10t day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-18
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
2026 FINAL TAX LEVY,
FOR PROPERTY TAXES COLLECTIBLE IN 2026

WHEREAS, the City of Canton has set the 2026 tax levy in the amount of $ 202,799.00, which
represents a 7% increase from the 2025 tax levy, and;

WHEREAS, the 2026 tax levy will generate an additional $ 13,267.00 in General Fund revenue
for operating expenditures incurred in 2026, and;

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed financial documentation and provided a
recommendation to the City Council, and;

WHEREAS, the City Clerk is instructed to transmit a certified copy of this resolution to the
Fillmore County Auditor by December 31, 2025

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota:

That the following sums of money be levied for 2026, collectible in 2026, upon taxable property in
the City of Canton, in these maximum amounts, for the following purposes:

1. General Revenue: $ 202,799.00
2. Total Certified Levy: $202,799.00

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10t" day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-19
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
2026 FINAL SEWER FUND OPERATING BUDGET

WHEREAS, the City of Canton is required to maintain a budget for its proprietary funds, and;

WHEREAS, the City is continually monitoring its budget and develops a fiscal budget based on
the calendar year, and;

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed financial documentation and provided a budget
recommendation to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota:
That the 2026 Final Sewer Fund Budget be certified in the amount of $ 145,590.00

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10t day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-20
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
2026 FINAL WATER FUND OPERATING BUDGET
WHEREAS, the City of Canton is required to maintain a budget for its proprietary funds, and;

WHEREAS, the City is continually monitoring its budget and develops a fiscal budget based on
the calendar year, and;

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed financial documentation and provided a budget
recommendation to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota:
That the 2026 Final Water Fund Budget be certified in the amount of $ 173,275.00

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10" day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-21
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
2026 FINAL FIRE DEPARTMENT OPERATING BUDGET

WHEREAS, under Minnesota law, the Canton Volunteer Fire Department is a part of the City,
and;

WHEREAS, the City Council controls the Fire Department’s finances, and;

WHEREAS, the Fire Department expenditures generally must be approved in advance by the
City Council, and;

WHEREAS, the City is required to maintain a budget for fiscal operations of the Fire
Department, and,;

WHEREAS, the Fire Department personnel accepted the 2026 final budget as prepared, and;

WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Committee reviewed financial documentation and provided a
budget recommendation to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota:
That the 2026 Final Fire Department Budget be certified in the amount of $ 46,440.00

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10t day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Ordinance #2026-01

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR
VARIOUS SERVICES, LICENSES AND PERMITS FOR 2026

Whereas, the City of Canton has adopted the Minnesota Basic Code of Ordinances as it has
been amended and supplemented to be its city code and that code permits the city to adopt by
ordinance a schedule of fees and charges for various services, licenses and permits;

Now, therefore be it resolved, that the City Council of Canton ordains:

Section 1. All fees and charges in effect as of the date of the adoption of the city code for the city shall
remain in effect unless otherwise modified by the provisions of this ordinance. All citations below are to

various sections of the city code unless otherwise indicated.

Section 2. The following are the fees and charges for the permits, licenses and services listed below
which are referenced to the section of the city code which authorizes their establishment:

Administrative Fees

Administrative Fees

Administrative Fees — Certifying Unpaid Charges
Copies

Election Filing Fee

NSF: Returned Check

Lawn Mowing by City (minimum 1 hour)

Snow Removal by City (minimum 1 hour)
Parking Citation

Unlawful Deposit of Waste or Refuse

Alcohol Licenses
On-Sale License

On-Sale Sunday Surcharge
Off-Sale License

Annual Animal Licenses

Cat & Dog Annual tag fee (Jan.1-June 30 and new animals)
Cat & Dog Annual tag fee — Late (after July 1)

Cat & Dog Duplicate tag fee

Chicken Annual fee (Jan. 1 — June 30 & new license)
Chicken Annual fee — Late (after July 1)

Animal At Large Citation

Fire Department Services
Call Response

Hourly Charge After First Hour
Mutual Aid Response

Heavy Equipment Use

$50.00
$100.00
$0.25

$3.00
$30.00
$75.00/hour
$75.00/hour
$25.00
$100.00

$600.00
$10.00
$100.00

$5.00
$15.00
$5.00
$10.00
$20.00
$50.00

$350.00
$350.00

Per agreement by department
Actual cost passed on by owner

I\



Planning & Zoning Fees

Land Use Permit Application — Living Space $7.50/100 square feet
Living space projects including aftached garages, decks and porches

Land Use Permit Application — Other Structures $5.00 per 100 square feet

Land Use Variance Application $200.00

Land Use Conditional Use Application $200.00

Interim Permit for Home Occupation $50.00

Fee for Construction Without Proper Permits $400.00

Recreational Vehicle/Golf Cart Permits

Annual permit fee (Jan. 1 — June 30 and new vehicles) $10.00

Annual permit fee — Late (after July 1) $20.00

Town Hall Rentals

Weekend Rental (Friday after 5pm thru Sunday) $500.00
Daily Rental $250.00
Hourly Rental (Two hour minimum) $30.00

Security Deposit (For Daily & Weekend Rentals) $200.00

Refuse Collection Rates

Garbage Tote — Small Monthly Fee $11.45
Garbage Tote — Medium Monthly Fee $12.97
Garbage Tote — Large Monthly Fee $14.46
Recycling Monthly Fee $4.75
Tote Transfer Fee $25.00
Sanitary Sewer Rates

Base Monthly Fee $43.00
Per 1,000 Gallons Used $7.00
New Service Connection $200.00

Water Rates

Base Monthly Fee $39.00
Per 1,000 Gallons Used $6.00
New Service Connection/Meter Replacement $380.00
Bulk Water Base Fee $40.00
Bulk Water Per 1,000 Gallons Used $6.00
Disconnection and/or Reconnection Fee $75.00
Unmetered Water Monthly Base Rate $50.00

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10t day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor

ATTEST:
Anne Koliha, City Clerk




State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-22
A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING A POLLING PLACE FOR
THE 2026 STATE PRIMARY AND STATE GENERAL ELECTION

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statues 204B.16 subd. 1 requires the City Council, by ordinance or
resolution, to designate polling places for the upcoming year, and;

WHEREAS, the City of Canton has fewer than 400 voters and is eligible to vote by mail in
statewide elections as authorized under Minnesota Statutes 204b.45, and;

WHEREAS, vote by mail ballot procedures eliminate the need to hire and train poll workers,
and;

WHEREAS, the City has benefited from the cost savings associated with vote by mail ballot
procedures in previous years, and;

WHEREAS, the State Primary Election is August 11, 2026 and the State General Election is
November 3, 2026, and;

WHEREAS, City of Canton residents not wishing to vote by mail can cast ballots at the Fillmore
County Courthouse on election days.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota:

That the City of Canton is designating vote by mail ballot procedures for the 2026 State Primary
and State General Elections;

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Canton will not have a polling place for the
2026 State Primary and State General Election;

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to send a copy of this resolution
to the Fillmore County Auditor.

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10t" day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-23
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE CANTON FIRE DEPARTMENT TO
APPLY FOR A MINNESOTA LAWFUL GAMBLING EXEMPT PERMIT

WHEREAS, the Canton Fire Department wishes to conduct lawful gambling on five or fewer
days, and will award less than $50,000 in prizes during calendar year 2026, and:;

WHEREAS, an exempt permit may be issued to a nonprofit organization by application to the
Minnesota Gambling Control Board, and;

WHEREAS, the application requires approval by the city council before submission to the
Minnesota Gambling Control Board, and;

WHEREAS, a non-refundable application fee of $100 must accompany the application, and;

WHEREAS, a financial report form will be mailed with an approved exempt permit and is to be

returned to the Minnesota Gambling Control Board within 30 days after the gambling activity is
completed.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota:

That the Canton Fire Department'’s request for a gambling premises located within Canton city
limits be approved.

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Canton, Minnesota this 10" day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



State of Minnesota
County of Fillmore

City of Canton

Resolution #2025-24
RESOLUTION CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSAL TO
ADOPT A STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN AND THE INTENT TO ISSUE
A GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTE THEREUNDER

WHEREAS, the City of Canton, Minnesota (the “City"), proposes that it is in the best
interests of the City to issue and sell a general obligation note pursuant to Minnesota Statues,
Section 475.58, subdivision 3b as amended (the “Act”), to finance all or a portion of the costs of
certain street reconstruction projects as described in the proposed street reconstruction plan
described below; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the City is authorized to issue and sell general
obligations to finance certain street reconstruction projects under the circumstances and within
the limitations set forth in the Act; and the Act provides that street reconstruction projects may
be financed with general obligations, following adoption of a street reconstruction plan, after a
public hearing on the street reconstruction plan and on the issuance of the general obligations
and other proceedings conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the City has undertaken to prepare a five-year street
reconstruction plan, which describes the streets to be reconstructed, the estimated costs and
any planned reconstruction of other streets in the City, including the issuance of general
obligations und the Act (the “Plan”), to determine the funding strategy for the street
reconstruction projects described in the Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Canton,
Minnesota, as follows:

Section 1. Public Hearing. The Council hereby determines to call for and to hold a public
hearing on the Plan and the issuance of one or more general obligations thereunder at a meeting
of the Council to be held on January 14, 2026.

Section 2. Publication. The staff of the City is hereby authorized and directed to cause the
Notice of Public Hearing, substantially in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, to be
published in the City’s official newspaper not less than 10 days nor more than 28 days prior to the
scheduled public hearing date.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Canton this 10t day of December 2025.

Kristy Ziegler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anne Koliha, City Clerk



EXHIBIT A
CITY OF CANTON, MINNESOTA

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON THE PROPOSAL TO ADOPT A STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN AND THE
INTENT TO ISSUE A GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTE

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Canton, Minnesota, will
meet on January 14, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. at the Canton Town Hall, 105 North Ash Street in
Canton, Minnesota for the purpose of conducting a public hearing on (a) the proposal to
adopt a five-year street reconstruction plan (the “Plan”) and (b) the intent to issue a
general obligation note in an amount not-to-exceed $1,539,000, subject to statutory debt
limitations, under the Plan for street reconstruction improvements described in the Plan.

All person may appear at the January 14, 2026, public hearing and present their
views to the Council orally or in writing.

CITY OF CANTON
By: Anne Koliha, Clerk

17



